
CAPSULE SUMMARY 
PG: 76B~O 
Mayhew-Barbaro House 
6417 Allentown Road 
Temple Hills, Prince George's County, Maryland 
c. 1933 
Private 

The Mayhew-Barbaro House was constructed c. 1933 at 6417 Allentown Road in Temple Hills, 

Maryland in the vicinity of Camp Springs. Beginning in 1917, Guy H. Trueman, a grocer and real 

estate speculator, expanded his land holdings with the purchase of two separate parcels obtained from 

Catherine Langley and the Rainey/Brennan families. Trueman, and his wife, Cora R. Trueman, would 

later contribute to the suburbanization of the Camp Springs area with the platting of "Trueman 

Heights," to the northeast of the Mayhew-Barbaro House, in 1953 . In 1933, the Truemans conveyed a 

six-acre parcel to Roy M. Mayhew and his wife, Mamie D. Mayhew. A second one-acre conveyance 

to the Mayhew's from Trueman occurred in 1935. Although it cannot be determined whether Guy H. 

Trueman or the Mayhews erected the Mayhew-Barbaro House, based on the form and materials of the 

dwelling, as well as its Tudor Revival-style design, indicates that the building was constructed c. 1933. 

The Mayhews owned the property for forty-five years and following their death, the property was 

conveyed to Joseph .and Giovanna Barbaro. The current owner, Unsuk Marousis, acquired the property 

in 2006 from the Barbaros. The Mayhew-Barbaro House retains a high level of integrity and presents 

its significance as a Tudor Revival-style single-family dwelling constructed in rural Camp Springs, 

Maryland prior to its intense suburbanization following World War II. 

This one-and-one-half-story, single-family dwelling is designed in the Tudor Revival style. The 

building is comprised of a side-gable main block, with a one-and-one-half-story, front-gable projection 

on the fac;;ade, a c. 1980 one-story, full-width addition on the rear elevation, and a c. 1985 one-story, 

front-gable addition on the rear elevation of the c. 1980 addition. The front-gable projection on the 

fac;;ade is original and has the same material treatment of the main block. Set on a solid foundation, this 

dwelling is faced with six-course, Flemish-bond brick. Asphalt shingles cover the side-gable roof, 

which is accented with overhanging eaves. A dormer, capped by a shed roof of asphalt shingles, marks 

the southeastern slope of the roof. The dormer is fenestrated with paired 6/6 wood-sash windows. An 

exterior-end brick chimney has a plain cap. Paired 6/6 wood-sash windows, complemented by a 

rowlock brick sill and a soldier brick flat arch, pierce the northeastern bay of the fac;;ade. 
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1. Name of Property (indicate preferred name) 

historic Mayhew-Barbaro House 

other 

2. Location 
street and number 6417 Allentown Road 

city, town Temple Hills 

county Prince George's 

3. Owner of Property (give names and mailing addresses of all owners) 

name Unsuk Marousis 

street and number 6417 Allentown Road 

city, town Temple Hills state MD 

4. Location of Legal Description 

Inventory No. PG: 768~70 

not for publication 

vicinity 

telephone 

zip code 20748-2610 

courthouse, registry of deeds, etc. Prince George's County Courthouse liber 24005 folio I 18 

city , town Upper Marlboro tax map 98 tax parcel 71 

5. Primary Location of Additional Data 
___ Contributing Resource in National Register District 
___ Contributing Resource in Local Historic District 
___ Determined Eligible for the National Register/Maryland Register 
___ Determined Ineligible for the National Register/Maryland Register 
___ Recorded by HABS/HAER 
___ Historic Structure Report or Research Report at MHT 
___ Other: ___________ _ 

6. Classification 

Category 
__ district 
_X_building(s) 
__ structure 
__ site 
__ object 

Ownership 
__ public 
_X_private 
__ both 

Current Function 
__ agriculture 
__ commerce/trade 
__ defense 
_X_domestic 
__ education 
__ funerary 
__ government 
__ health care 
__ industry 

__ landscape 
__ recreation/culture 
__ religion 
__ social 
__ transportation 
__ work in progress 
__ unknown 
__ vacanUnot in use 

other: 

tax ID number 06-0562769 

Resource Count 
Contributing Noncontributing 

I buildings 
____ sites 

2 structures 
_ _,___ __ objects 

4 Total 

Number of Contributing Resources 
previously listed in the Inventory 

0 



7. Description 

Condition 

_x_ excellent 

_good 
fair 

deteriorated 
ruins 
altered 
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Prepare both a one paragraph summary and a comprehensive description of the resource and its various elements as it 
exists today. 

The Mayhew-Barbaro House is located at 64 l 7 Allentown Road in Temple Hills, Maryland. Situated on the 
northwest side of Allentown Road, the dwelling has a deep setback from the road. The level, grassy property is 
marked by mature trees, shrubs, and foundation plantings. An asphalt driveway approaches the property from 
Allentown Road and forms a circular drive in front of the garage, which is situated west of the dwelling. A 
concrete patio connects the garage and the dwelling. Additional resources consist of a barbeque pit, fountain, 
and a dog house. 

DWELLING 

Constructed c. 1933, this one-and-one-half-story, single-family dwelling is designed in the Tudor Revival style. 
The building is comprised of a side-gable main block, with a one-and-one-half-story, front-gable projection on 
the fayade (southeast elevation), a c. l 980 one-story, full-width addition on the rear (northwest) elevation, and a 
c. l 985 one-story, front-gable addition on the rear elevation of the c. 1980 addition. The front-gable projection 
on the fayade is original and has the same material treatment of the main block. 

Set on a solid foundation (material not visible), this dwelling is faced with six-course, Flemish-bond brick. 
Asphalt shingles cover the side-gable roof, which is accented with overhanging eaves and raking wood boards. 
A dormer, capped by a shed roof of asphalt shingles, marks the southeastern slope of the roof. The dormer 
cheeks and face are stuccoed and fenestration consists of paired 6/6 wood-sash windows. A full-width shed 
dormer spans the northwestern slope of the roof and is stuccoed. The dormer fenestration was not visible. An 
exterior-end brick chimney rises from the northeast (side) elevation and has a plain cap. Paired 6/6 wood-sash 
windows, complemented by a rowlock brick sill and a soldier brick flat arch, pierce the northeastern bay of the 
fayade (southeast elevation). 

The deeply-recessed, segmental-arched central bay of the front-gable projection holds a single-leaf, paneled 
wood door with lights. A stack-bond surround with soldier brick and header brick segmental arches accent the 
opening. A brick stoop with metal balusters connects the primary entry to the concrete walkway. Small 
openings flank the primary entry and each holds a 1/1 vinyl-sash window, which is fini shed by a rowlock brick 
sill and soldier brick flat arch. A 414 wood-sash window pierces the upper gable end and also has a rowlock 
brick sill and a soldier brick flat arch. The side (southwest and northeast) elevations of the front-gable 
projection are fenestrated with small 111 vinyl-sash windows. Each has a rowlock brick sill and soldier brick flat 
arch. A six-light wood awning window with a soldier brick flat arch pierces the foundation of the southwest 
elevation. 

The central bay of the southwest elevation holds a single-leaf flush door (material not visible). A one-story, 
one-bay front-gable hood shelters the entry. Asphalt shingles cover the hood, which is supported by wood knee 
brackets. Additional fenestration consists of paired 4/4 wood-sash windows, 6/6 wood-sash windows, and six­
light wood awning windows. Each window opening has a rowlock brick sill and a soldier brick flat arch. A 
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rectangular louvered wood vent marks the upper gable end and has a rowlock brick sill and soldier brick flat 
arch. The northeast (side) elevation of the main block was not accessible at the time of the June 2011 
architectural survey. 

A one-story, full-width addition, constructed c. 1980, spans the rear (northwest) elevation of the dwelling and is 
one-bay deep. Constructed of concrete blocks and set on a solid concrete block foundation, this addition is faced 
with stretcher-bond brick. A shallow front-gable roof, covered with asphalt shingles, caps the addition and 
features overhanging eaves. Visible fenestration consists of 1/ 1 vinyl-sash windows and single-light vinyl 
awning windows. Each opening has a rowlock brick sill. 

A one-story addition, constructed c. 1985, extends from the northernmost bay of the c. 1980 addition. The 
addition is faced with stretcher-bond brick and is capped by a front-gable roof of asphalt shingles. At the time of 
the June 2011 architectural survey, the addition was not accessible and fenestration was not visible. 

A permanent deck, with a solid brick foundation, is located in the elbow of the c. 1980 and c. 1985 additions. 
Metal balusters encircle the deck, which is accessed via steps on the southwest side. 

GARAGE 

A one-story, three-bay garage is located west of the dwelling and is the terminus for the asphalt-paved 
driveway. The garage is believed to have been erected c. 1985 based on its construction materials. The garage is 
constructed of concrete blocks, faced with stretcher-bond brick, and set on a solid foundation. Asphalt shingles 
cover the side-gable roof, which is finished with a boxed cornice and plain raking boards. A vehicular opening 
marks the central bay of the fac;ade (southeast elevation) and holds a roll-up, paneled wood door. A single-leaf 
opening pierces the northeastern opening and holds a flush metal door. The southwestern opening holds a 1/ 1 
wood-sash window. The northeast (side) elevation is fenestrated with a single-leaf, flush metal door and a Ill 
wood-sash window. The side (southwest) elevation and rear (northwest) elevation were not accessible. 

FOUNTAIN 

A molded concrete fountain is sited southwest of the dwelling and based on its materials appears to date to c. 
1985. The fountain is set on an elevated planting bed that is surrounded by circular retaining wall comprised of 
stamped concrete. The fountain is approximately four-feet in height and is supported by a molded concrete 
pedestal. 
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A barbeque pit, constructed c. 1995, is located southwest of the dwelling and is sited between the garage and 
house. The barbeque pit is constructed of brick. The central section is approximately four-feet in height and the 
flanking blocks are approximately two-feet in height. 

DOG HOUSE 

A small dog house is located directly southeast of the garage and was constructed c. 2000. The wood-frame dog 
house is clad with plywood and is capped by a shed roof. A rectangular opening marks the fac;ade (southeast 
elevation). 

INTEGRITY 

The Mayhew-Barbaro House retains a high level of integrity of design, materials, and workmanship despite the 
construction of two rear additions. The additions are faced with brick and extend from the rear (northwest) 
elevation and thus do not detract from the overall appearance of the building. The property's integrity of 
location, setting, and feeling has been retained because the dwelling still stands on a large, grassy property set 
back from Allentown Road and is a single-family dwelling. Although the property is no longer associated with 
the Mayhew or Barbaro families, the property has retained integrity of association. 

The property 's associated garage (c. 1985), fountain (c. 1990), barbeque pit (c. 1995), and dog house (c. 2000) 
are considered non-contributing resources due to their recent construction dates. 

Overall, the Mayhew-Barbaro House with secondary resources presents a high level of integrity. 



8. Significance 
Period 

1600-1699 
1700-1799 
1800-1899 

x 1900-1999 
2000-

Specific dates 

Areas of Significance 

_ agriculture 
_ archeology 
X architecture 

art 
commerce 
communications 

_ community planning 
conservation 

c. 1933 
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Check and justify below 

economics 
education 

_ engineering 
entertainment/ 

recreation 
_ ethnic heritage 
_ exploration/ 

settlement 

health/medicine _ performing arts 
_ industry _ philosophy 

invention _ politics/government 
_ landscape architecture _ religion 

law science 
literature _ social history 

_ maritime history _ transportation 
_ military X other: Local History 

Architect/Builder Unknown 

Construction dates c. 1933, c. 1980, c. 1985 

Evaluation for: 

___ National Register ____ Maryland Register ___ not evaluated 

Prepare a one-paragraph summary statement of significance addressing applicable criteria, followed by a narrative discussion of the 
history of the resource and its context. (For compliance projects, complete evaluation on a DOE Form - see manual.) 

STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE 

The Mayhew-Barbaro House was constructed c. 1933 at 6417 Allentown Road in Temple Hills, Maryland in the 
vicinity of Camp Springs. Beginning in 1917, Guy H. Trueman, a grocer and real estate speculator, expanded 
his land holdings with the purchase of two separate parcels obtained from Catherine Langley and the 
Rainey/Brennan families. Trueman, and his wife, Cora R. Trueman, would later contribute to the 
suburbanization of the Camp Springs area with the platting of "Trueman Heights," to the northeast of the 
Mayhew-Barbaro House, in 1953. In 1933, the Truemans conveyed a six-acre parcel to Roy M. Mayhew and 
his wife, Mamie D. Mayhew. A second one-acre conveyance to the Mayhews from Trueman occurred in 1935. 
Although it cannot be determined whether Guy H. Trueman or the Mayhews erected the Mayhew-Barbaro 
House, based on the form and materials of the dwelling, as well as its Tudor Revival-style design, indicates that 
the building was constructed c. 1933. The Mayhews owned the property for forty-five years and following their 
deaths, the property was conveyed to Joseph and Giovanna Barbaro. The current owner, Unsuk Marousis, 
obtained the property in 2006 from the Barbaros. The Mayhew-Barbaro House retains a high level of integrity 
and presents its significance as a Tudor Revival-style single-family dwelling constructed in rural Camp Springs, 
Maryland prior to its intense suburbanization following World War II . 

HISTORIC CONTEXT 

The Mayhew-Barbaro House is located near Camp Springs, Maryland. Camp Springs was originally established 
in the mid-nineteenth century at the intersection of present-day Branch A venue (MD 5) and Allentown Road. 
Camp Springs is located adjacent to and west of Joint Base Andrews Naval Air Facility. Today, Camp Springs 
is roughly bounded by the Capital Beltway (I-495) on the north, Henson Creek and Cherryfield Road on the 
west, Kirby Road on the south, Joint Base Andrews Naval Air Facility on the east, and Wesson Drive on the 
northeast. 

Early maps of the area note that it was originally called "Allentown," in honor of the Allen family, who were 
large landholders in the community. Martenet's map of 1861 documents a settlement at the crossroads of 
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present-day Branch Avenue and Allentown Road. The small community comprised several houses, a Methodist 
Church, school house, a blacksmith shop, and several stores. 1 By 1878, as documented by the Hopkins map, the 
growing community was also known as Camp Spring. The Hopkins map denotes the Camp Spring post office, 
Methodist Church, blacksmith shop, and many residences, the majority of which were constructed between 
1861and1878.2 According to local legend, the community was named Camp Springs by the soldiers fighting in 
the Civil War who traveled through the area and set up camp near the abundant natural springs. 3 

The community experienced remarkably slow growth throughout the late nineteenth century and into the 
twentieth century. Despite the increased need for housing in the Washington metropolitan area during and after 
World War II and the community' s close proximity to a rapidly growing military installation, growth in Camp 
Springs was slower than in other areas of Prince George ' s County. After the installation of water and sewer 
lines in the early 1950s, and the opening of the Capital Beltway (I-495) in the 1960s, Camp Springs finall y 
experienced steady development, which continued through the 1970s. The widening of roads and increased 
commercial development along Branch A venue and Allentown Road eliminated most reminders of the 
nineteenth-century community known as Allentown. 

The Mayhew-Barbaro House is sited on a 5.14-acre parcel that was once part of a larger, early-twentieth­
century tract that was accumulated through various land conveyances by Guy H. Trueman. Beginning in 191 7, 
Catherine Langley, a widow living in the District of Columbia, conveyed her four-acre parcel off of Allentown 
Road to Trueman.~ No information regarding Catherine Langley could be located. 

Guy H. Trueman was born August 16, 1885 in the Nottingham District of Maryland and was the son of Henry 
T. Trueman, a farmer, and Florence E. Trueman.5 He married Cora R. Grimes, also of Maryland, around 1910. 
Grimes, born in 1887, was the daughter of Henry W. Grimes, a farmer in Brandywine, and his wife, Sarah M. 
Grimes.6 Trueman was employed as a retail merchant in the grocery business and in 1920 was the proprietor of 
his own general store.7 In 1922, Trueman expanded his landholdings on which the Mayhew-Barbaro House is 
located when Katherine B. Rainey, Robert B. Rainey, and Nora A. Brennan conveyed a 12.75-acre parcel to 
him. 8 

Katherine B. Rainey (nee O ' Brien) and Nora A. Brennan (nee O' Brien) were sisters and had inherited the 
property from their father, Maurice. Maurice O'Brien, a native of Ireland, was born c. 1839 and in 1870 was 
residing in the District of Columbia with his wife, Catherine, and their children, Honora (Nora) and Kate 
(Katherine). At this time, Maurice was employed as a laborer.9 

Katherine O'Brien was born in the District of Columbia in 1868 and married Robert B. Rainey in 1888. In 
1910, the couple was residing in the District of Columbia with their children, Maurice A., Mary C. , Cecilia H. , 
Robert B. , Jr. , Louise, and Edward. Robert and his son, Maurice, were both employed in a work shop as 



Maryland Historical Trust 
Maryland Inventory of 
Historic Properties Form 

Mayhew-Barbaro House 
Continuation Sheet 

Number__§___ Page 2 

Inventory No. PG: 768~70 

tinners. 10 By 1920, the family resided at and owned 725 4th Street, NE and Robert was employed as a foreman 
of repairs. 11 

By 1930, the Truemans were living in Silver Hill and had four daughters, Katherine A. , Evelyn R. , Gladys H., 
and Sara, and a son, Guy Jr. Katherine, the couple's eldest daughter, worked at a dairy farm as a stenographer. 12 

In 1933, Trueman was appointed a trustee of the Camp Springs School by the Prince George ' s County Board of 
Education and he was also a certified notary public. 13 Although a grocer by trade, Trueman had an interest in 
real estate speculation. In addition to the Mayhew-Barbaro property, Trueman and his wife purchased multiple 
tracts of land throughout the second quarter of the twentieth century and eventually platted the subdivision 
"Trueman Heights" in 1953 . This subdivision is located northwest of the Mayhew-Barbaro House. The 
subdivision did not sell well at first. In fact, construction on a wide scale did not come to Trueman Heights until 
the late 1960s. The earliest found advertisements for the neighborhood appear in 1963. A listing for the 
dwelling at 5805 Hartwell Street boasted of the "new brick ramblers" with 3 or four bedrooms, 2.5 baths, 
multiple fireplaces, modem kitchens, air conditioning, full basements, and plastered walls. 1 ~ 

In June of 1933, the Truemans conveyed six acres of the Mayhew-Barbaro House property to Roy M. Mayhew 
and his wife, Mamie D. Mayhew 15 Two years later they sold an additional acre to the Mayhews bringing their 
total acreage to seven.16 Guy and Cora Trueman lived in the dwelling next door at 6103 Old Branch Avenue. 17 

No information regarding Roy M. Mayhew could be located. Mamie Dameron Mayhew was born about 1894 in 
Virginia and in 1920 was residing in the District of Columbia at the home of her sister, Viola Carson and 
brother-in-law William Carson. At this time, she was clerking at the Geographic Society. 18 

Following the death of Roy M. Mayhew in 1973 and then Mamie D. Mayhew in 1977, C. Calvert Lancaster was 
identified as the personal representative of the Estate of Mamie D. Mayhew. In 1978, he conveyed the 6.6424-
acre parcel to Joseph Barbaro and Giovanna Barbaro. 19 

The Barbaros owned the property until 2006 when they sold approximately five acres to the current owner, 
Unsuk Marousis. 20 Information related to the Barbaros or Unsuk Marousis could not be located. 
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10. Geographical Data 

Acreage of surveyed property 
Acreage of historical setting 
Quadrangle name 

5.14 
12.75 
Anacostia 

Verbal boundary description and justification 

Quadrangle scale: _I :_2_4~0_00 ____ _ 

The Mayhew-Barbaro House is located in Temple Hills, Maryland, within the vicinity of Camp Springs, on a 5.14-acre tract of 
land. The property, known as Parcel 71 , is bounded to the southeast by Al I en town Road. The southwest, northwest, and northeast 
boundaries follow stands of mature trees. The property has been associated with Parcel 71 as noted on Tax Map 98 since its 
construction c. 1933. 
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Maria Dayton and Paul Weishar/Architectural Historians 
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Washington state DC 

The Maryland Inventory of Historic Properties was officially created by an Act of the Maryland Legislature 
to be found in the Annotated Code of Maryland, Article 41 , Section 181 KA, 
1974 supplement. 

The survey and inventory are being prepared for information and record purposes only 
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return to: Maryland Historical Trust 
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Crownsville , MD 21032-2023 
410-514-7600 
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Parcel I 

Deed 
125:418 
March 19, 1917 

Parcel 2 

Deed 
175:316 
April 6, 1922 

Parcels I & 2 

Deed 
392:454 
June 10, 1933 

Deed 
422:380 
May 31, 1935 

Deed 
NLP 4989:233 
August 28, 1978 

Deed 
24005:118 
January I, 2006 

CHAIN OF TITLE 

PRINCE GEORGE'S COUNTY LAND R ECORDS 

Catherine Langley to Guy Trueman. ( 4 acres) 

Katherine B. Rainey and Robert B. Rainey, and Nora A. Brennan, widow, to Guy H. Trueman, Sr. 
(12.75 acres) 

Guy H. Trueman, Sr. and Cora R. Trueman to Roy M. Mayhew and Marnie D. Mayhew. (6 acres) 

Guy H. Trueman, Sr. and Cora R. Trueman to Roy M. Mayhew and Marnie D. Mayhew. ( 1 acre) 

C. Calvert Lancaster, persona l representative of the Estate of Marnie D. Mayhew, surviving Tenants 
by the Ent irety of Roy M. Mayhew, to Joseph Barbaro and Giovanna Barbaro. (6.6424 acres) 

Joseph Barbaro and Giovanna Barbaro to Unsuk Marousis. (5.1739 acres) 
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641 7 Allentuwn Road 
Tempk Hills. Prince George's County 
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